Minutes

OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF



Listening Learning Leading

Council

HELD AT 6.45 PM ON THURSDAY 23 NOVEMBER 2017

THE FOUNTAIN CONFERENCE CENTRE, HOWBERY PARK, CROWMARSH GIFFORD

Present

Jeannette Matelot (Chairman)

Anna Badcock, Joan Bland, Felix Bloomfield, Nigel Champken-Woods, Steve Connel, John Cotton, Anthony Dearlove, David Dodds, Stefan Gawrysiak, Elizabeth Gillespie, Tony Harbour, Paul Harrison, Lorraine Hillier, Elaine Hornsby, Mocky Khan, Sue Lawson, Lynn Lloyd, Toby Newman, David Nimmo-Smith, Richard Pullen, Bill Service, Robert Simister, Ian Snowdon, David Turner, John Walsh and Ian White

Apologies:

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Charles Bailey, Kevin Bulmer, Pat Dawe, Will Hall, Imran Lokhon, Jane Murphy, Anthony Nash, Caroline Newton and Alan Thompson

Officers:

Steven Corrigan, Paul Holland, William Jacobs, Adrianna Partridge, Margaret Reed and Mark Stone

46 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest

None.

47 Urgent business and chairman's announcements

The Chairman provided housekeeping information.

She referred to a well attended past chairmen's lunch.

48 Public participation

The chairman advised that Dr Wyatt and Mr Pannett had registered to address Council on the Low Emission Strategy item.

49 Low Emission Strategy

Council considered the recommendations of the General Licensing Committee, made at its meeting on 16 November 2017, on the draft Low Emission Strategy for South Oxfordshire District Council. The recommendations of the General Licensing Committee were circulated to all councillors following the meeting and were before councillors at this meeting.

Dr Wyatt and Mr Pannett addressed Council. Both raised concern that the recommendations of the General Licensing Committee did not reflect the committee's discussion or final decision. In their view the committee discussed at length the need to undertake further modelling and analysis of the proposed transport measures and not the viability of trials. This point is clearly set out in the report of the interim head of waste, parks, leisure and environmental health considered by the General Licensing Committee.

David Dodds, Chairman of the General Licensing Committee, agreed with the views expressed by the speakers and moved the following motion, seconded by Paul Harrison:

- 1. To approve the Low Emission Strategy that includes the modelling and analysis of the proposed transport measures identified in Wallingford and Watlington.
- To authorise the head of service with responsibility for environmental health to make any minor amendments to the strategy in consultation with the Cabinet Member for environmental health and the Chairman of the General Licensing Committee.

Members of the General Licensing Committee supported the wording of the motion which reflected the sentiment of the meeting held on 16 November. The adoption of the strategy would allow the council to explore the feasibility of the options. After exploring the feasibility, it would be possible to consider viable options and consult further with facts and evidence to support these.

Officers confirmed that before implementation the proposals will be fully evaluated and a report including the results would be presented to the General Licensing Committee for a final decision on any permanent implementation.

A number of councillors expressed concern at the lack of measures to address air quality issues in Henley and were hopeful that the further modelling would bring forward options.

RESOLVED: to

- 1. approve the Low Emission Strategy that includes the modelling and analysis of the proposed transport measures identified in Wallingford and Watlington.
- authorise the head of service with responsibility for environmental health to make any minor amendments to the strategy in consultation with the Cabinet Member for environmental health and the Chairman of the General Licensing Committee.

50 Exclusion of the public

RESOLVED: to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the following item of business under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:

- it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and
- ii. the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

51 New office accommodation at Crowmarsh Gifford

Council considered cabinet's recommendations, made at its meeting on 14 November 2017, on the proposed plan to demolish the current fire damaged building at Crowmarsh Gifford and then design, procure, build and fit out a new building sufficient to accommodate the council's headquarters. The recommendations were circulated to councillors following the Cabinet meeting. Cabinet supported the proposal and recommended that Council make the necessary budget decisions.

Council agreed the necessary budget provision to progress the project and secure a new headquarters at Crowmarsh Gifford by 2020.

52 Appointments to senior posts

Council considered the confidential report of the head of legal and democratic services and interim head of corporate services on appointments to senior posts.

Council agreed the recommendations set out in the report. Council further agreed to waive the substitute provisions for the Joint Staff Committee insofar as they restrict the substitution of non-cabinet members of the committee to members of that political group.

53 Report of the Leader of the council

The Leader of the council provided an update on an announcement in the Budget regarding the principle of a housing deal for Oxfordshire. In return for the Oxfordshire authorities accepting higher housing numbers they would receive £150million for infrastructure funding, £60million for affordable housing and £5million capacity funding for the development of a joint spatial plan. The Leader confirmed that Council would have the final vote on any deal.

I	he	mee	ting c	losed	at	8.1	5	pm	1
---	----	-----	--------	-------	----	-----	---	----	---

Chairman